
AGENDA
DATE & TIME: WEDNESDAY 15 FEBRUARY 2017

VENUE: CHARLES BURRELL CENTRE, 
STANIFORTH ROAD, THETFORD, 
IP24 3LH

1. GREATER THETFORD DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP (GTDP) 
COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP AGENDA ITEMS 

Page(s)
2 - 6

Public Document Pack



GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting
Wednesday 15th February 2017, 7–9pm,

Charles Burrell Centre, Staniforth Road, Thetford, IP24 3LH

Agenda
1. Introductions

2. Approval of Minutes
Approval of the minutes from the previous Sub-Group meeting of January 11th.

3. Announcements & Matters Arising
Announcements from the Chair; Matters arising from the minutes not covered in another item.

4. Thetford Enterprise Park and Sustainable Urban Expansion Updates

5. Education Provision Q&A
Chris Hey and Jane Blackwell from Norfolk County Council’s Children’s Services will be present
to explain the Council’s role in Education planning and answer questions from the public.

6. Public Questions
Up to 15 minutes for questions and comments from members of the public.

7. Items for Discussion
Main items for public discussion and input. See separate papers for background information.

(a) GTDP Board Strategic Objectives

(b) Ideas for local projects and schemes to recommend to the GTDP Board.

8. Items to Note
Other items of public interest, which there will not necessarily be time to discuss at this meeting.

(a) Thetford Town Council now has an Email Newsletter.
Subscribe online at http://www.thetfordtowncouncil.gov.uk/news/

(b) The official opening of the new Redcastle Furze play area will take place on 16th February.
Contact the Town Council for more information.

(c) A new Residents’ Group is being set up for the Cloverfield and Willows Estate.
The first meeting will take place at 7pm on Wednesday 22nd February in Cloverfield Church.
Email cawrathetford@gmail.com for more information.

9. Any Other Business

Members of the public are encouraged to attend and participate at the meeting. In addition to the time
for public questions, members of the public have the opportunity to contribute during the remainder
of the meeting at the invitation of the Chair. For more details and papers see
http://robert.mathmos.net/gtdp/community-subgroup/.

2

Agenda Item 1

http://www.thetfordtowncouncil.gov.uk/news/
http://robert.mathmos.net/gtdp/community-subgroup/


Chairman’s Notes
Robert Whittaker

GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 15th February 2017

1 GTDP Board Meetings

There have been no formal GTDP Board meetings since our last Sub-Group meeting on
11th January. However, there has been a second private workshop of Board Members
(held on 20th January) in order to work on the Board’s vision, aims and objectives. I
was unable to attending this workshop so, Corinne Fulford (as the Sub-Group Vice-Chair)
attended in my place. The workshop was productive, and significant progress was made
towards agreeing a vision statement and a set of objectives.

The Board will consider this further at its next meeting on Friday 17th February, with a
view to formally agreeing the vision, aims and objectives. Unfortunately, although further
details of the workshop are available to Board and Sub-Group members, we are unable to
share them publicly at the moment.

2 GTDP Website Improvements

The GTDP website at http://www.gtdp.org.uk/ is managed by Breckland Council on
behalf of the Board. Various improvements were discussed and agreed between representa-
tives of the Council and the Community Sub-Group in October 2016. So far, the majority
of these improvements have yet to be made. Breckland Council have been experiencing
further problems with their website management system, but we were promised at the last
Sub-Group meeting that they would be able to implement them by the start of February.
At the time of writing though, the improvements have yet to be made.

3 Answers to Public Questions

Various issues have been raised by the public at previous Sub-Group meetings, and we
have attempted to investigate and provide answers.

Future Health Provision. Based on the research carried out for the previous Sub-
Group Meeting, it would appear there will be insufficient provision of NHS dentists
and GPs as the SUE is developed. This issue will be reported to the Board at their
next meeting.

Future Education Provision. We are grateful to Chris Hey and Jane Blackwell from
Norfolk County Council’s Children’s Services, who have agreed to attend this month’s
Sub-Group meeting to explain the Council’s role in education planning and answer
questions from the public.

Bus Interchange Issues. Various issues have been raised concerning the Bus Inter-
change: (a) The digital screen that still says “under construction”, (b) the lack

1

3

http://www.gtdp.org.uk/


of signage to prevent drivers accidentally entering the bus station, (c) the lack of a
pedestrian crossing on Minstergate, and (d) the ability for private hire coaches to use
the spare stands. With regard to (b), there is a clear sign and painted text on the
road to stop general traffic entering the interchange at its entrance on Minstergate.
However, there are no signs at all at the exit onto the Iceland/BHF service road.
I wrote to Norfolk County Council on 16th January requesting further information
on these issues, and asked that they provide a response in time for this update. Un-
fortunately, despite chasing them up again, I have yet to get a full response. I can
report though, that some of the delays in activating the digital screen were caused
by waiting for a BT line to be installed.

Railway Station Parking and Access. At the Sub-Group meeting on 11th January,
various issues were raised about the railway station, including its lack of parking, and
lack of accessibility for the disabled and those with limited mobility. In particular,
it was noted that Station Lane, the road access to the northern platform, is not an
adopted highway, and as a result of the condition of the surface, taxis will often
refuse to use it.

I have written to Greater Anglia asking for more information about their assessment
of and any plans to improve access and parking at the station. Unfortunately, I’ve
only managed to get as far as Customer Services so far, who do not have access to all
the information I was seeking. It looks as if they do not have any definite plans for
improvements in the near future, but I will follow this up to get a definitive answer.

Post Office ‘Closure’. At the last Sub-Group meeting on 11th January, there was some
concern expressed over reports that Post Office Ltd. was intending to close the main
branch in the town centre. The press release from Post Office Ltd. was slightly vague,
so I followed it up with their press office to get some more complete information.

It is not so much that they are looking to close the Post Office branch in the town
centre, but more that they are looking to change the way it is run. Most Post Office
branches are run under a franchise-like model with an individual or business running
the counter and being paid by the Post Office for the services they provide. A smaller
number of branches, known as “Crown Post Offices” are run directly by Post Office
Ltd., with directly employed staff. The Thetford town-centre branch is currently a
Crown Post Office, but Post Office Ltd. is looking for a partner to take it over under
the franchise-like model.

The successful partner might make use of the existing building, might chose to run
the branch from a different location, or might install counters in an existing shop.
The Royal Mail Delivery Office that is currently behind the Post Office building is
unaffected by these plans, so I would expect that the parcel collection point would
remain there whatever happens to the Post Office.

If and when a franchise partner is selected for the Thetford branch, their plans
(including location, services available, and opening hours) will be subject to a public
consultation. The services available will not necessarily be reduced, and often with
franchised branches, the opening hours are increased.

2

4



4 Car Parking and Pedestrian Signage Consultation

I have heard nothing further about the signage work since the last Sub-Group meeting.
A response to the consultation was submitted, but we have yet to be informed of Norfolk
County Council’s response or receive details of the final plans to be implemented.

I also have nothing further to report on the other two studies, which are covering car park
utilisation and traffic flows in and around the town centre. The former has been completed
and Breckland Council is considering the findings before further action is taken. The latter
will be led by Norfolk County Council, and I believe it has not been started yet.

5 King Street Square

The documents received from Norfolk County Council in response to an FOI request1 did
not include detailed plans for the clock and water feature, instead such plans were to be
submitted by ‘specialist suppliers’ for approval. I’ve followed this up to see if the Council
have these plans, and know who approved them. I am currently waiting for a response.

Separately, there was an informal offer from an electrician who is known to Corinne Fulford
to have a look at the clock and its control systems to try to determine exactly what is
wrong with it. Hopefully the Town Council will take advantage of this, and we will report
any progress made.

6 Thetford Enterprise Park Roundabout

The Thetford Enterprise Park (TEP) is a proposed new business park that will occupy
land to the west of Mundford Road, just south of the A11. An access roundabout will be
build on Mundford Road at the current junction with Wyatt Way.

On 19th January, Breckland District Council reported they had formally accepted a further
£450k of funding for the roundabout.2 The roundabout is currently estimated to cost
£2.2M, and I believe that full funding of this figure has now been achieved. I have
requested a breakdown of the estimated costs and funding sources from Breckland to
report here, but they have not been able to provide it in time.

1https://www.whatdotheyknow.com/request/king_street_square_thetford
2https://www.breckland.gov.uk/article/4261

3

5

https://www.whatdotheyknow.com/request/king_street_square_thetford
https://www.breckland.gov.uk/article/4261


Items for Discussion
GTDP Community Sub-Group Meeting, 15th February 2017

(a) GTDP Strategic Objectives

The Board has had two private workshops in December and January focusing on agreeing
vision, aim and objectives for GTDP. The Community Sub-Group was represented at each
one, by the Chair (Robert Whittaker) at the first and the Vice-Chair (Corinne Fulford) at
the second. The workshops were both productive and much progress was made. That the
draft vision, aim and objectives for GTDP are to be discussed at the next Board meeting
and then shared more publicly. There is a specific proposal that will be considered at the
Board meeting, but we have not been permitted to share this publicly at the moment.

While we cannot discuss the specific proposals, it would be useful to obtain some feedback in
order to help inform the Sub-Group representative’s position to take at the Board meeting. In
particular, we would like to hear what people’s priorities are for the development of Thetford
in areas such as growth, regeneration and employment; amenities and recreation; education
and skills; housing; health; transport; cooperation between GTDP partner organisations;
transparency and public consultation; and anything else anyone can think of.

(b) Projects and Schemes to Promote to the GTDP Board

The GTDP Board is looking for some significant projects and schemes it can champion and
support for the benefit of Thetford. The community sub-group, in particular, has been asked
for suggestions of things that could be considered. While there is no specific funding available
at the moment, it is possible that money could be found/raised for the right projects. It
is also worth considering whether we think the Board should promote larger projects that
would have most benefit, but could take longer to realise; or (perhaps a number of) smaller
projects that could be completed more quickly with less outlay required.

At the previous meeting, a number of ideas were suggested, including:

• Fixing the issues with King Street Square

• A roundabout at the Croxton Road/Mundford Road junction

• Improvements to disabled access and parking at Thetford Railway Station

• Community use for the former Cosy Carpets building by the Bus Interchange

• Improvements to the local walking and cycling networks

• Supporting Jamie Oliver’s campaign against Holiday Hunger

• Fixing the digital information board at the Bus Interchange

• Bringing the former Cottage Hospital Building back into use

These, and any more ideas can be discussed further at this meeting, and the Sub-Group may
decide to make some recommendations to the Board.

1

6



Date: 11 January 2017
DRAFT MINUTES Time: 19:00

Meeting Title: GTDP Community 
Sub-Group

Type of Meeting: Monthly

Chair: Robert Whittaker Note / Minute 
Taker:

Corinne Fulford

Attendees: Robert Whittaker, Roy Brame, Andy Cruse, Corinne Fulford, Diana 
Goucher, Doug Stephen

Apologies: Rae Herries.
Breckland apologised for not sending a minute taker, there were no 
agendas or minutes provided for the public. Thanks to Barbara Bysouth 
and Charles Burrell Centre for organising emergency copy agendas, and 
to Corinne Fulford for standing in to take notes.

Notes and Discussion points:
Actions

1.  INTRODUCTIONS
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained the 
purpose of the Greater Thetford Development Partnership Board and its 
three Sub-Groups.
Members introduced themselves. 
Also present was:

Riana Rudland Breckland Council Place Manager (representing 
Robert Walker, Executive Director Place)
14 members of the public.

2.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The Norwich Road/Mundford Road roundabout proposed works were 
raised by one of the residents directly affected. He reported that he had 
been in touch with numerous people, including Cllr Denis Crawford, the 
police, Breckland, Pigeon. Various suggestions were made and Riana 
Rudland confirmed that he would be a consultee and urged him to act 
himself too and not to rely solely on representatives. Andy Cruse 
mentioned that the roundabout work was currently scheduled for 2034.

The Mundford Road/Croxton Road junction was also raised and the 
question asked whether the funding agreed for the TEP access 
roundabout further up the road wouldn’t be better spent on this  
dangerous junction. The Chairman advised that the TEP was well 
supported and that plans were already set and in motion. He also said 
that he had seen potential plans for traffic lights with a right turn restriction
– something scheduled as part of the development. There had also been 
mention of allowing buses to go from Croxton Road to Old Croxton Road.

Ian Dixon, chair of Croxton Road Residents Association was present and 
updated on their history with the junction, He confirmed that this had been 
an issue for 12 years, a petition with 18,000 signatures had been 
collected (the academy had since been built). He was very concerned 
about using traffic lights as they had received confirmation that if this 
solution was selected the railway bridge would need widening and that 
had been costed at over £1 million. A civil engineer report had also been 
drawn up. He confirmed that no authority had consulted with residents.

Cllr Mike Brindle stated that this was probably the most serious traffic 
issue in Thetford currently and needs a complete re-think.

7



The alternative route out via the north was also highlighted but it was not 
ideal to re-route past the school.

Action: The Chairman asked whether the civil engineer report could 
be made available to the group for information.
Another resident asked whether it was possible to have every document 
available to the public. It was confirmed that everything is currently 
available to view on the Web, with the address included on all publicity. 
There have been articles in the About Thetford, the poster has been 
widely circulated, positioned in the rotunda and at Thetford’s Great 
Information Centre.

It was asked why it couldn’t be on the Thetford Town Council noticeboard.

A suggestion was also made to advertise at the new cinema if 
engagement with young people was required.

Action: Request a permanent notice on the Thetford Town Council 
King’s House notice board, and investigate a possible board at the 
Riverside development.

Robert 
Whittaker to 
follow up with 
Ian Dixon

Roy Brame

3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The following amendments were made:

Page 4 penultimate paragraph: ‘After some discussion about who was to 
blame it was agreed that lessons had been learned and it was best to 
move forward and try to get the problems resolved.” Should read:

‘After some discussion about who was to blame it was agreed that given 
the public interest and initial communication that a member of the public 
was happy to pursue, then we should at least try to investigate further. It 
may well be that the result will be that lessons have been learned and it 
was best to move forward and try to get the problems resolved, but the 
questions should still be asked.’

Page 4, 4th paragraph from the end of item 6b: ‘as the specification had 
not been written properly’ should be changed to ‘but it was unclear if this 
was due to a problem with the specification or in the implementation.’

Subject to those amendments the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 
November 2016 were agreed.

We are still experiencing some difficulties with timely publication of 
minutes. A discussion also took place in relation to how amendments are 
adopted. Currently they are only shown on the minutes of the following 
meeting. The Sub-Group would prefer that an approved/corrected version 
(also) be published, so that anyone reading it does not need to check the 
next minutes to ensure what they have is correct. Mr Stephen 
recommended that draft minutes are circulated as soon as available to 
the committee, giving a week for amends and then published once 
amended. In order for minutes to available to the public within the current 
two-week target, this would need much more rapid circulation of the initial 
draft though. A member of the public suggested that it would be better to 
detail amendments at the bottom of the original set and publish these as 
final.

Action: Follow up minutes version issue with Breckland DC Clerks
Robert 
Whittaker

8



to see what might be possible.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS & MATTERS ARISING

In relation to King Street Square (now referred to as King’s Square), Mr 
Brame stated that it was not on any plan for Thetford Town Council for 
them to be pursuing, that is not what is going to happen. They haven’t got 
the budget. They haven’t got the staff.

Ms Fulford highlighted the funding recently applied for by Thetford Town 
Council and agreed by Breckland via the Market Town Initiative, including 
greening of King’s Square.

There was further discussion and a member of the public asked Mr 
Brame to clarify whether he was saying that the Town Council are not 
interested? He confirmed that he had himself been actively working on 
the King’s Square issue for 2 years, investigating whether a legal case 
can be made for it not being fit for purpose.

Ms Fulford said that as there is clear public interest we should present the 
matter to the board. She also suggested that she write a summary of the 
key issues for the Community Sub-Group to agree.

Action: A summary on King’s Square issues to present to the 
board.
Riana Rudland gave the following updates from last meeting:

1. Andy Prior advises that the current platform on Breckland Council’s 
website won’t allow for the changes we want to make, however, the 
template for a new platform will be ready for a test run by the end of 
January and hopefully thereafter the changes can happen.

2. Confirmation regarding the Joe Blunt’s Lane question is that the 
planning application is currently outline and available on the website. 
The detailed one will follow later and at that time comments can be 
made.

The Chairman had raised concerns with the Education representative on 
the GTDP Board, who had confirmed that there was a survey ongoing. He 
had also offered to come down to a future meeting and be available for 
public questions. A member of the public highlighted that he had seen the 
same representative present to the Board approximately 18 months ago, 
so there should be details available. Mr Stephen asked what the point of 
having the representative down would be, given that everyone knows the 
position and difficulty with getting appointments. The Chairman felt that 
the offer was helpful and the general view was that it would be useful to 
make this available to the public.

Action: Keep education provision under review.
The Chairman also updated the meeting on his investigation into 
healthcare provision in relation to the SUE. From the information he had 
received, it appeared that the only NHS dentist was at capacity, with no 
possibility for expansion. Additional dental provision was only scheduled 
for later phases of the SUE. One of the existing GP practices was looking 
to expand in the near future, hopefully providing 4,000 extra places.
However, this would not quite cover the expansion until s106 resources 
allowed for new service provision in the SUE.

Action: Concerns over healthcare provision to be raised with the

Corinne 
Fulford

Robert 
Whittaker

9



GTDP board. Robert 
Whittaker

5.  THETFORD ENTERPRISE PARK AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN  
EXPANSION UPDATES
The Board had not had a formal meeting since the last Sub-Group 
meeting, and there were no other known developments to report.

6.ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

a) Recommendation to the GTDP Board for its Strategic Objectives 
in the areas of community aspiration and public engagement.

The Chairman explained that the last Board meeting was a private 
‘Away Day’ with the aim of pinning down a vision, purpose and 
objectives for the Partnership. On the objectives, everyone wrote 
‘issues’ and ‘opportunities’ for Thetford on post-it notes, which were 
then grouped into different themes e.g. education, health, 
recreation/amenities, employment, collaboration, community 
engagement etc. Each of the themes was given to a member to 
research and report back, hence we are looking at Community and 
Public Engagement.
The following matters were raised by members of the public and 
discussed:
Now the new cinema area was open, it was felt that a community 
officer on evening patrol was needed.
This was felt to be more of an issue for STAG and a general 
discussion involving the proposed changes to a PSPO and what that 
entailed took place. Riana Rudland explained the background to the 
existing DPP and the new change and highlighted how the police 
need to demonstrate need and are therefore gathering statistics.
Public were urged to report incidents.
More of a general wellbeing post was required, someone to check  
that the street lights were working, litter being collected etc. A need for 
a general telephone number for reporting issues and for this number 
to be widely available - make it easy for people.
Comment was made that most can now access websites via mobile 
phones so a website address might be sufficient.
Would be better to have eye-catching, moving information on a 
screen.
The point was made that the digital information board in the bus 
station was still not being utilised and had been in place for at least  
18 months. Ms Fulford understands that there appears to have been 
lengthy discussions as to who can use the facility but advised that the 
Information Centre would happily update if it could be made available. 
The Chairman suggested three areas to prioritise in order to increase 
public engagement:
1. Information Provision – Information should be publicised and 

made accessible to people, so they can easily find out about 
future plans.

2. Consultation – The public need to be given appropriate 
opportunities to provide feedback on the published plans.

3. Ability to Influence – The feedback needs to be listened to, so that

10



that public have the ability to influence and steer the development 
of their town. They also need to feel that this is indeed the case.

There was support for these objectives, but it was acknowledged that 
the final point may be harder to achieve.
An Elm Road resident raised concerns over lack of notice boards and 
that local information is covered over with heritage. She felt that 
people were disengaged and disinterested. She also raised safety 
issues with the new bus station. One of the bus shelters is the wrong 
way around. Pine Close shops has people gathering, which is 
intimidating, street lights aren’t working and she lives in fear of going 
out after dark in Thetford. Women feel vulnerable.
The King’s Fleet website was raised, it was felt that it was minimal 
and out of date. Would be nice to see a bit more information.

Action: As the Chairman is unavailable for the next meeting, he 
and the Vice Chairman (who will attend) would collate the ideas 
and present them at the Board workshop on 20th January.

b)  Ideas for local projects and schemes to recommend to the GTDP 
Board.
The Chairman explained that the Board was looking for local projects 
to champion, and asked for ideas from the Sub-Group and members 
of the public.
Mr Stephen suggested, given the various issues that had been raised 
all along it, that the Board take a proper look at Mundford Road – 
holistically.
Parking around Station Road – Norwich side – needs to be looked at 
now. There is a significant problem with lack of parking (Carters site 
was mentioned). It was pointed out that this route is currently an 
unadopted roadway. Repairs are shared by Network Rail, the 5 
houses and Carters. Apart from the need for his road to be adopted, it 
would also exit onto the Mundford Road.
The Railway Bridge and frequent issues of vehicles getting stuck was 
raised. It was suggested that a bar either side of the bridge could 
help. Disabled access to the station was also raised and there are 
significant issues here too.
The Chairman felt that transport would be a very useful sub-group for 
GTDP as it wasn’t well represented currently.
An update was given on the Cosy Carpets building at the bus station 
by Councillor Brindle. NCC want to sell it on or let it out at a high rent. 
The Town Council don’t want to invest at a high rent and NCC say 
they are helping out one or more charities but nothing further has 
been heard. Mr Brame advised that Breckland Council gave NCC the 
MTF money to buy it so should hold a little sway. He thinks that they 
are waiting for time to pass so that they can get rid of it as a 
commercial project. He also advised that he had been working with a 
group looking at the other building at the bus station to use as a café 
and waiting area and as a heritage starting point but that hadn’t come 
to anything. Ms Fulford said that the Information Centre hadn’t been 
aware of this and would have be keen to be involved.
Stuart Wright had written previously and had detailed a number of 
improvements that would assist and encourage walking and cycling in 
Thetford. The Chairman advised that he would love to see a cycle 
route from the centre of Thetford to High Lodge. The Green Loop was

Robert 
Whittaker & 
Corinne 
Fulford

11



mentioned and in general anything making cycling safe for school and 
work was thought to be a great idea.
Mr Brame said that he had seen a recent Jamie Oliver programme 
about getting rid of hunger in Summer, opening schools for meals 
through Summer holidays and thought it would be a good thing to do 
in Thetford. A member of the public pointed out that Sharon 
Thompson was doing something in this area.
Ms Fulford raised the digital information board at the bus station as a 
quick and easy project. The Cottage hospital – to fund bringing into 
public ownership and leasing to Grove Lane surgery who were at 
capacity and play areas. A member of the public commented that 
could play equipment please be accessible to all as that at Castle 
Park is not.
Action: Possible projects to be considered at the next Sub- 
Group meeting, with a view to making some suggestions to the 
Board two days later.

Robert 
Whittaker

7. ITEMS TO NOTE
a) Thetford Town Council By-Election for Castle Ward was happening 

tomorrow – 12th January.
b) Forestry Commission consultation on parking charges (response 

deadline 15th January).
c) Budget Consultation by Breckland District Council (response deadline 

22nd January).

8.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Neither the Chairman or Vice-Chair were available for the GTDP Board 
meeting scheduled for Friday 17th February. Diana Goucher will attend to 
represent the Community Sub-Group.

Mr Cruse raised the news just released that there were plans to close 
Thetford’s main Post Office. The Community Sub-Group would try and 
find out more information.

A member of the public asked who was responsible for the dyke at Abbey 
Meadows because it needs clearing. Mr Brame advised he will find out.

Robert 
Whittaker

Roy Brame

9.  DATES FOR NEXT MEETINGS

The next meeting would be held on 15 February 2017, 7 - 9pm Charles 
Burrell Centre.

12


	Agenda
	1 Agenda items
	3-chairmans-notes
	GTDP Board Meetings
	GTDP Website Improvements
	Answers to Public Questions
	Car Parking and Pedestrian Signage Consultation
	King Street Square
	Thetford Enterprise Park Roundabout

	7-items-for-discussion
	Minutes - 11 Jan 17


